
 

Page 1 of 5 

cc11172011 

Heber City Corporation 

City Council Meeting 

November 17, 2011 

 

7:00 p.m. 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

The Council of Heber City, Wasatch County, Utah, met in Regular Meeting on November 17, 

2011, in the City Council Chambers in Heber City, Utah. 

 

Present:    Mayor    David R. Phillips 

 

     Council Members  Eric Straddeck 

         Nile Horner 

         Robert Patterson 

         Alan McDonald 

         Benny Mergist 

 

Also Present:    City Manager   Mark K. Anderson 

     Deputy City Recorder  Michelle Kellogg 

     City Engineer   Bart Mumford 

     Planning Director  Tony Kohler 

     Police Chief   Ed Rhoades 

 

Others Present:  Jeff Bradshaw, Darryl Glissmeyer, Fran McGrath, Daniel Mauer, Billy 

Williams, Bruce Heywood, Laurie Wynn, Sue Buys, Kari McFee, Larry Newhall, Paul Berg, 

Glinda Straddeck, Dennis Roberts, and others whose names were not legible. 

 

Mayor Phillips opened the meeting and welcomed those in attendance.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance: Council Member Mergist 

Prayer:  Council Member Patterson 

 

Minutes: October 20, 2011, Work Meeting; October 20, 2011, Regular Meeting 

 

Council Member Patterson moved to approve the above listed minutes. Council Member Mergist 

made the second. Voting Aye: Council Members Straddeck, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist. 

Voting Nay: Council Member Horner. 

 

OPEN PERIOD FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Dennis Roberts, Valley Hills, stated he was the oldest person in the room. He had served on 

various committees and Councils throughout the years, and wanted to comment on the City 

survey. He asked who wrote it. Council Member Straddeck indicated he did. Roberts stated no 

reputable person would send out a survey like that. He stated when public funds were used, a 

vote from the Council was required. He didn’t think that a vote had occurred, so funds had been 

illegally used. He suggested the Council Members voting for the survey repay those funds. He 

also stated discussions should be encouraged among the Council.  



 

Page 2 of 5 

cc11172011 

Roberts stated Council Member Straddeck’s emails regarding campaign politics were 

unprofessional and out of line. He asserted that ecclesiastical resources were used to spread 

Council Member Straddeck’s propaganda. Roberts said the Mayor had the duty to make sure 

those actions did not occur, and he did nothing.  Roberts also stated Council Member Patterson 

delivered pizza to the employees before the Primary Election with Mayor Phillips. He asked if it 

was part of the campaign, because it was not on the disclosure form. 

 

Mayor Phillips clarified that he helped Council Member Patterson pay for the pizza, and had 

asked all the Council to participate in that if they so desired. It did not take place during the 

Primary Election but during the summer. He also thought a vote had been made allocating 

money for the survey. Council Member McDonald clarified a vote was made for a survey, but 

not for that particular survey.  

 

Fran McGrath talked about cars parked on the sidewalk on 200 West, and stated the police had 

been there, but the residents disregarded the law. She indicated the HOA had also sent the 

offenders a letter. She would like to see this problem addressed. Chief Rhoades stated he would 

get the addresses from McGrath again and follow up on this issue. 

 

Council Member Straddeck indicated Roberts gave his opinion, but his age and experience didn’t 

make him an expert. He also stated that the ecclesiastical accusation was a lie, and he wanted 

that to go on public record. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Approval of Request to Waive Event fees for the Cottages for the Children Event: 

 

Local Consent – Restaurant Liquor License, Dancing Bear Café, located at 32 South Main:  

 

Approval – Marelko LC Access Agreement to Heber Parkway: 

 

Council Member McDonald moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Council Member Mergist 

seconded the motion.  

 

Voting Aye: Council Members Straddeck, Horner, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist. 

 

Laurie Wynn commented that the Cottages for Children Event was in its 11
th

 year.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) First Public Hearing – Consider Potential 

Projects for Which Funding may be Applied Under the CDBG Small Cities Program for 

Program Year 2012: Anderson read the following from his staff report: “The Council should 

solicit ideas from the public. If no ideas for projects are presented by the public or the City 

Council, staff would recommend that the City make application for the project outlined in Mr. 

Kohler’s staff report. Because the City has obtained CDBG funding this year, it is less likely that 

Heber City will meet the criteria for selection. The income survey of this area may also not meet 

the eligibility requirements as well. If they do, the survey results are good for three years and the 

project could be submitted for consideration in future years.”  

 



 

Page 3 of 5 

cc11172011 

Anderson then read the following: “The hearing is being called to consider potential projects for 

which funding may be applied under the 2011 Community Development Block Grant Program. 

The grant money must be spent on projects benefiting primarily low and moderate-income 

persons. The Mountainlands Association of Governments (MAG) in which Heber City is a 

Member, is expecting to receive approximately $480,000 in this new program year. All eligible 

activities that can be accomplished under this program are identified in the CDBG Application 

Guide and interested persons can review it at any time. 

 

Several of the eligible activities include construction of public works and facilities such as water 

and sewer lines, fire stations, acquisition of real property, provision of public services such as 

food banks or homeless shelters. Also eligible are loan programs for private businesses which 

would then hire low income persons and the program can also pay for housing rehabilitation for 

low income homeowners or for persons owning rental housing for lower income persons. 

 

Since 1982, Heber City has received 17 CDBG grants totaling over 1.7 million dollars, with most 

of the projects for water and sewer, ADA corners, storm drain, and a fire truck.” 

 

Mayor Phillips opened the meeting to the public for comments. McGrath asked what the projects 

were for. Anderson explained the programs were to benefit low to moderate income level 

residents; whether it would be for job creation, infrastructure, or health and welfare. 

 

With no other comments, Mayor Phillips closed the public comment portion of the public 

hearing. 

 

Council Member Horner asked how it was determined if lower income residents were served. 

Anderson indicated a survey was taken to the residents in the area of the project to determine the 

number of occupants per residence and the income range for the residence. 

 

Mayor Phillips asked if another public hearing would be required for the CDBG funding process. 

Kohler indicated that staff identified within the Consolidated Plan some additional blocks on 300 

West which were in need of water line replacements. In the spring, a second public hearing 

would be necessary if the application received high consideration from CDBG. Surveys would 

also be required.  

 

Council Member Horner asked if businesses had requested funding from this grant in the past. 

Anderson stated there was a time when the care center asked for help for funding a new building, 

but they never moved forward with that. Council Member Horner asked Kohler if he was in 

charge of applying for the funds. Kohler indicated he was in charge of the process. McGrath 

asked if Habitat for Humanity had been helped. Kohler stated non-profit organizations like 

Habitat for Humanity could request that government entities apply in their behalf. Council 

Member Horner asked Kohler to keep businesses in mind when looking for opportunities to help. 

 

Mayor Phillips explained the competition would be tight. Some years the City got funding and 

some years it didn’t get funding. Anderson said if funding wasn’t received this year, the surveys 

would be good for three years, so the City could reapply next year. 

 

 



 

Page 4 of 5 

cc11172011 

Council Member McDonald moved to accept the Community Development Block Grant project 

as outlined and continue to do what the City has to do to apply for those services needed to make 

funding available. Council Member Mergist seconded the motion.  

 

Voting Aye: Council Members Straddeck, Horner, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist. 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

Discuss Elmbridge road connection to Muirfield Park: Council Member Mergist asked Larry 

Newhall, president of Muirfield HOA, what percentage of the Muirfield residents were opposed 

to the road construction. Newhall stated there were two sections of Muirfield Subdivision. The 

twin home residents that were next to the new road were very opposed to the new road. The 

further away the residents lived from the project, the less they cared. Traffic and speed were the 

main concerns. He thought 40-60 children lived in the immediate vicinity. McGrath stated a gang 

problem was a concern at the playground. The equipment was vandalized, music blared, etc. 

 

Mayor Phillips asked if the Council was interested in doing anything other than what was in the 

Master Plan. Council Member McDonald stated he respected the concern from the citizens, but 

from driving around that area, he could see the wisdom of the Master Plan. He would like to see 

a solar speed sign installed in the area so cars could see their speed as they passed and could 

slow down as needed. Council Member Horner stated he was in favor of the Master Plan but 

wanted a conscious effort made to enforcing the speed limit. Mayor Phillips asked Chief 

Rhoades to address the gang issue. Council Members Straddeck and Patterson were also in favor 

of sticking with the Master Plan. Council Member Mergist was not in agreement. 

 

Approve Airport Rules and Regulations: Council Member Mergist asked if any changes were 

made about hangar usage, because in the past, requests were made to use the hangars for other 

purposes. Anderson stated there were two issues. Hangar owners could store items in the hangars 

if they had aircraft on the field. The other issue was the empty hangars being used for other 

storage until an opportunity arose to lease a hangar for an aircraft. Council Member Mergist 

asked if the Council had leeway to grant temporary usage for other things. Anderson indicated 

the City did have that leeway if no demand existed for aviation purposes. 

 

Council Member McDonald moved to approve the Airport Rules and Regulations manual. 

Council Member Straddeck made the second.  

 

Council Member Horner asked if the rules allowed for the lease of the empty hangars. Anderson 

stated that was not addressed in the manual. The manual was only for the hangar owners/lessees. 

Council Member McDonald thanked the airport board for efforts.  

 

Voting Aye: Council Members Straddeck, Horner, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist. 

 

Review Recommendation from Airport Advisory Board Regarding UDOT Aeronautics 

Airport Pavement Maintenance Grant: Anderson stated the City received a letter from UDOT 

Aeronautics stating there was a need to crack seal and seal the taxiway and apron at the airport, 

and a grant would cover 90% of the costs. The purpose of the project would be crack sealing, 

seal coat and paint for the apron and taxiways.  He indicated the Airport Board recommended the 

City make application for this grant, and stated this was funded by State Aeronautics so there 

would be a 10% match versus the FAA grants where the match was 5%. Council Member 



 

Page 5 of 5 

cc11172011 

Straddeck asked why City didn’t seek an FAA grant. Anderson replied the FAA was more 

focused on new construction. Council Member Straddeck asked if the taxiway was done by a 

prior State grant and it was indicated it was. 

 

Council Member McDonald moved to accept the recommendation by the Airport Board and 

approve the grant application for maintenance of the airport for $63,000, and have Armstrong 

Engineering do the engineering work for the project. Council Member Patterson made the 

second.  

 

Voting Aye: Council Members Straddeck, Horner, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist. 

 

Review/Adopt Proposed Five Year Airport Development Capital Improvement Plan: 

Anderson stated the Airport Board was recommending the priority list as being in the best 

interest of the City. He indicated the City hoped the FAA would fund 95% of the airport projects 

in 2013 and 2014, with the State funding 2.5% and the City funding 2.5%. The Airport Board 

was also considering an upgrade to the airport from B2 to C2, and wanted to get input from the 

Council.  

 

Council Member McDonald stated the upgrade would be a substantial cost to the City and it 

would take out hangar row. Council Member Horner asked what would happen if the Council 

was against it. Anderson stated the upgrade would be taken from the Master Plan. Council 

Members Horner, McDonald, and Mergist stated they were against upgrading to a C2 size 

airport. 

 

Council Member Horner wanted to see the Master Plan move forward, but he stated he would 

like to see some of the sewer water moved across the street to irrigate the airport grass and make 

it nice to look at. Anderson stated no human contact should be made with the sewer water. 

Council Member Horner stated there would be no contact and the airport could monitor the 

situation. Anderson was concerned about additional wildlife if there was increased vegetation. 

Council Member Patterson asked if a pipe could be installed before the new road went in next 

spring. 

 

Council Member Patterson moved to approve the Five Year Airport Development Capital 

Improvement Plan. Council Member McDonald made the second.  

 

Voting Aye: Council Members Straddeck, Horner, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist. 

 

Council Member Patterson moved to go into closed session to approve minutes and for personnel 

reasons at 8:00 p.m. Council Member Mergist made the second.  

 

Voting Aye: Council Members Straddeck, Horner, Patterson, McDonald, and Mergist. 

 

The Council came out of closed session at 8:10 p.m. With no further business, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Michelle Kellogg, Deputy City Recorder 


